
June 23, 2011 CLARIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS: 
 
 
 
In Part 1, section1.3, the vendors were invited to submit written inquiries to the Issuing 
Officer. A number of written inquiries were received by the June 23, 2011 deadline.  The 
official written responses are set out below.  The NHSLC appreciates written inquiries. 
They provided effective communication among the NHSLC and vendors. 
 
Vendors must respond to each section; do not leave any sections unanswered.  Vendors 
can respond by indicating “understood” which means it agrees that it will meet the 
requirement.  Or, a vendor can respond by indicating “I take an exception” and if a 
vendor takes an exception, the vendor needs to provide an alternative.  If a vendor can’t 
do it, say you can’t do it, and if you think there is an alternative that will get us to the 
same place, tell us what that alternative is. 
 
There have been several questions about Section 3.0.15, Page 31, Insurance, Bond and 
Registration in the Warehouse RFP.  Two items required by this section are an all-risks 
insurance policy and a business interruption insurance policy.  Please note that Section 
3.0.12, Page 29, requires the vendor to list charges.  The vendors shall separately list 
the charges for all-risk insurance and business interruption insurance.  In other 
words, these insurance charges shall not be included in the costs identified in Appendix D 
but shall be separately set out as annual amounts. 
 
Transportation RFP Answers: 
 
 
Question:  Page 13, Section 1.9:  What is considered an act of God when referring to 
missed delivery appointments? 
 
Answer:  Act of God is a legal term for events outside of human control, such as sudden 
floods or other natural disasters like a tornado, hurricane, earthquake, blizzard, or ice 
storm for which no one can be held responsible. 
 
 
Question:  Page 25, Section 4.4:  Under “Criteria for Selection” how will the point be 
awarded? 
 
Answer:  In Section 4.4 from pages 25-27, there is a fairly detailed explanation of how 
the evaluation committee will determine the awarding of points for each of the criteria 
noted above. 
 
 
Question:  Page 39, Appendix D:  Under the per case rates will there be a minimum per 
order amount allowed? 
 
Answer:  There is no minimum on orders. 



 
 
Question:  Transportation RFP Answers – Page 1 – Q&A #2 – and - Transportation RFP 
– Appendix C – page 37 – sub-paragraph “c”:  In your June 14th clarifications posting, 
you provide shipping data for 29 stores deemed to be pallet delivery.  Please identify 
those stores which do not have dock facilities thus requiring pallet delivery by lift gate 
truck or trailer. 
 
Answer:  Currently, there are four stores:  Woodsville (16), Manchester (33), and 
Merrimack (59).  Lebanon (11) is currently being retrofitted to allow pallet delivery.  
This is not a static number and could change during the contract period. 
 
 
Question:  Appendix D – page 39:  Please confirm that stores listed as pallet, but which 
do not have dock facilities thus requiring pallet delivery by lift gate, will be considered 
hand-unload stores when determining pricing as is the current practice. 
 
Answer:  Any stores that take pallet delivery – by loading dock or by lift gate – are 
considered pallet delivery stores for pricing purposes.  Should other stores change to 
pallet delivery during the contract period, the cost of delivery to those stores would 
change to the pallet delivery price. 
 
 
 
Warehouse RFP Answers: 
 
 
Question:  Part 1, Section 1.1, Purpose, Page 8:  Should a vendor choose to decline to 
submit a Proposal for one of the two required scenarios, would their remaining Proposals 
still be accepted or would declining to submit Proposals for both scenarios disqualify the 
Vendor completely? 
 
Answer:  No, a vendor will not be automatically disqualified for only submitting one 
scenario (A or B), however, the NHSLC will take into consideration whether a vendor 
has submitted a proposal that includes an item that is “important” and the explanation 
why that item was not included. 
 
 
Question:  Part 1, Section 1.21, Subcontractor, Page 20:  Please confirm, and clarify 
further if possible, that the intention of Subcontractors in this section is not for Vendors 
to list Temporary Agencies, and Cleaning companies and Security firms, computer 
support, etc., which could be hundreds of companies, but instead the intention is for 
Vendors to list Subcontractors that would perform functions that a Vendor would be paid 
for, such as Receiving, or store delivery.  Examples of Subcontractors in the operational 
and IT realms you expect to be included would be helpful. 
 



Answer:  The intent in Section 1.21 is for the vendor to notify the NHSLC when sub-
contractors may be used to perform any of the basic functions outlined in the RFP such as 
providing warehouse space or delivering product to our retail stores.  The NHSLC is not 
interested in approving your janitorial services or temp services vendor.  
 
 
Question:  Page 12 Section 1.9:  Contract Performance Bond-What size bond is required? 
 
Answer:  Please see answer provided in the June 6, 2011 Clarifications & Amendment, 
Amendment #1.  
 
 
Question:  Page 15 1.10.3 Event of Default; Defined, G. Default Criteria: the vendor does 
not maintain adequate security and/or fire protection and/or lighting and/or climate 
control and/or dangerous condition is allowed to develop.  Please define this. What type 
of lighting is the NHSLC looking for?  Please define climate control. 
 
Answer:  A typical security system that protects against intrusion by alarming doors and 
windows along with motion detectors would be appropriate.  Fire protection standards as 
defined by state and/or local codes are minimum requirements.  Lighting should be in 
accordance with local, state and national codes as well as what would be required for 
typical security requirements.  Regarding climate control, the Warehouse RFP defines a 
range of temperatures that are acceptable for the storage of wine product.  Exceeding 
those temperatures risks damaging product and is not acceptable.   
 
 
Question:  Page 20 Section 1.22:  Explain in detail specific conditions in which a 
Proposal Guarantee would not be returned to the vendor. 
 
Answer:  Please see answers in the June 6 and June 14, 2011 Clarifications & 
Amendments, Amendments #1 and #3 
 
 
Question:  Page 21, Section 1.25, Contract Transition Period, 4th Paragraph:  All costs 
associated with the transfer of product and control from the existing warehouse(s) (old) to 
the warehouse of the successful Vendor(new), including, but not limited to, shipping, 
handling and transportation, shall be borne by the NHSLC, the terminated Vendor or the 
new Vendor as determined by the NHSLC.  How does the NHSLC determine who is 
going to be responsible for these costs?  How does a vendor that is quoting on the 
business know whether or not they need to factor this into their rate? 
 
Answer:  The responsibility for bearing these costs will depend upon the circumstances 
determined by the NHSLC.  For example, if the vendor executes a contract and 
subsequently defaults, then that vendor will be responsible for these costs.   
 
 



Question:  Page 26, Section 3.0.6, Floor Capacity and Storage Capacity, 3rd Paragraph:  
Vendors should specify contingency plans for handling a 25% increase in inventory over 
current levels.  Is the vendor required to honor the rates that they quoted in the RFP or 
can they charge a rate that reflects their additional costs to handle this increase in 
business? 
 
Answer:  Each vendor is required to provide a contingency plan to cover a 25% increase 
in inventory over current levels.  If the vendor’s contingency plan results in additional 
operating costs or an increase in rate, the vendor shall so specify. 
 
 
Question:  Page 27, Section 3.0.6, Floor Capacity and Storage Capacity, 2nd Paragraph:   
Currently, the two warehouses have a capacity of seven hundred and fifty thousand 
(750,000) standard cases in static storage, with eight thousand (8,000) distinct bin 
locations, while maintaining full incoming and outgoing traffic.  How does the NHSLC 
define a bin location? 
 
Answer:  A bin location is a specific area in the warehouse racking that accommodates 
one product code.  Typically, a bin location holds up to one pallet which could contain 50 
- 70 cases. 
 
NOTE:  Section 3.0.6 was amended in the June 6, 2011 Clarifications and Amendments, 
Amendment #1: the private warehouse has a capacity of approximately 750,000 standard 
cases; the Concord warehouse has a capacity of approximately 175,000 standard cases in 
static storage. 
 
 
Question:  Page 28, Section 3.0.7, Floor Movement Capacity:  In evaluating current 
liquor and wine warehousing operations, the following equipment is being used: 

a. Quantity eight(8) 4,000 LB. minimum capacity motorized fork-lift vehicles 
able to handle palletized loads 

b. Quantity six(6) 3,000 LB. minimum capacity motorized forklift vehicles able 
to handle palletized loads 

 
Is this the total amount of material handling equipment at the current two warehouses 
being utilized by the NHSLC? If not, please provide a list of equipment by location. 
 
Answer:  The quantities noted above are correct but incomplete.  Section 3.0.7 also 
included  
 

c. the ability to handle slip-sheets and barrels; as well as,  
d. equipment suitable and sufficient for picking product.   

 
Sections c. and d. may involve push-pull (slip-sheet) machines and squeezer machines 
that can lift and separate layers in a pallet.  Single bottle pick operations may be done 
manually or by machine. 



 
Page 28 Section 3.0.8:  Are ALL cases labeled?  Even cases on full pallet or display 
racks?   
 
Most cases arriving at our warehouses have appropriate New Hampshire labels affixed to 
each case.  There are occasions, however, when cases arrive and must be labeled or 
relabeled.  All outgoing cases from the warehouse to our retail stores must be labeled 
with a label showing the store number and other relevant information.  Complete pallets 
of the same product leaving the warehouse for delivery to one of our retail stores receive 
one pallet label showing the store number and other relevant information.   
 
 
Question:  Page 29 Section 3.0.10 - What is meant by the sentence: “Vendors are also on 
notice that the NHSLC plans a transition during the term of contract to take control of the 
warehouse computer and business systems.” 
 
Answer:  The NHSLC will be replacing point-of-sale software and back-office software 
at headquarters over the next few years.  The transition to new back-office software will 
affect the warehouse operations regarding inventories, product ordering, and the like.  
This transition should be relatively transparent to the warehouse vendor.  Please see 
answer in the June 14, 2011 Clarifications and Amendments, Amendment #3. 
 
 
Question:  Page 31, Section 3.0.15, Insurance, Bond, and Registration, 2nd Paragraph: 
The operating warehouse shall have and maintain an all risks insurance policy (with 
NHSLC named as a loss payee) to provide 100% coverage of product owned by the 
NHSLC.  A certificate of insurance shall be provided to the NHSLC.  What percentage of 
the inventory is owned be the NHSLC vs the distributors?  What is the value of the 
inventory that is owned by the NHSLC?  How much insurance is required for the 
inventory that is owned by the distributors? 
 
Answer:  The percentage of NHSLC-owned inventory at Law Warehouse as of June 21, 
2011 is 1.6%.  The value of that inventory is $1,159,427.33.  See Appendix L, Page 101 
for current liability for care of goods.   
 
 
Question:  Page 32, Section 3.0.15, Insurance, Bond, and Registration, First full 
paragraph, second sentence:  The vendor shall have and maintain a business interruption 
insurance policy with the NHSLC named as a loss payee to cover the event that the 
vendor is unable to receive and/or ship product as required such that the business of the 
NHSLC and/or suppliers and/or its licensees are disrupted and/or an excessive amount of 
product is damaged and/or delayed.  What does this mean? How much coverage is the 
NHSLC looking for?  Define required policy amounts for business interruption insurance. 
 
Answer:  The NHSLC anticipates gross revenue for fiscal year 2012 at $169,000,000 and 
fiscal year 2013 at $179,000,000.  Therefore, in fiscal year 2012, the NHSLC will 



generate gross revenue from the retail stores and the private warehouse in the 
approximate amount of $463,000 per day, 365 days a year.  A percentage of this revenue, 
approximately 30%, is derived from the Concord warehouse independent of the private 
warehouse.  With this further calculation, the approximate gross revenue per day, 365 
days a year, generated by the private warehouse is $324,000.  The same calculation can 
be applied to fiscal year 2013.  The NHSLC seeks a proposal that insures all lost gross 
revenue where the vendor does not perform its required contractual obligations. Please 
see answer in the June 6, 2011 Clarifications and Amendments, Amendment #1. 
 
 
Question:  Page 51, Section XVII:  The NHSLC will receive free storage for product for 
product owned by the NHSLC up to 35,000 cases but will pay for inbound and outbound 
handling.  
 
Please provide the following data: 

1) Store orders shipped per year 
2) Cases per outbound store order 
3) SKUs per outbound order 
4) % of total picks-Bottles 
5) % of total picks-Cases 
6) % of total picks-Pallets 

 
Answer:   
 1.  Store orders shipped from Concord over the last 12 months – 7,296; store 

orders shipped from Nashua over the last 12 months – 8,553; licensee orders 
shipped from Concord – 72; licensee orders shipped from Nashua – 34,571. 

 2.  Cases shipped per order to stores from Concord averaged 163.9 over the last 
12 months; cases shipped per order to stores from Nashua averaged 244.4 over the 
last 12 months.  Cases shipped per order to licensees from Concord – 129.1; cases 
shipped per order to licensees from Nashua – 44.9. 

 3.  This information was published in Amendment # 3 - June 14, 2011 
CLARIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS.  The term brand code and SKU are 
interchangeable. 

 4.  Concord bottle picks to stores over the last 12 months were less than 1/10 of 
one percent of items ordered (these bottle picks were breakage only); Nashua 
bottle picks to stores over the last 12 months was 6.1% of items ordered.  There 
are no bottle picks for licensees from Concord; Nashua bottle picks to licensees 
was 13.7% of items ordered. 

 5.  Concord case picks over the last 12 months were 99.8% of items ordered; 
Nashua case picks over the last 12 months were 93.8% of items ordered.  Concord 
case picks to licensees was 99.4% of items ordered.  Nashua case picks to 
licensees was 86.2% of items ordered. 

 6.  Concord pallet picks over the last 12 months were 1/10 of one percent of items 
ordered; Nashua pallet picks over the last 12 months were less than 1/10 of one 
percent of items ordered.  Concord pallet picks to licensees was ½ of one percent 
of items ordered.  Nashua pallet picks to licensees was 1/10 of one percent of 
items ordered. 



 
Question:  What are the current staffing levels of your existing two warehouses (by 
location) including all Managers, Supervisors, Equipment Operators, Clerks, etc.? 
If part timers are used please provide the number of part timers along with the average 
number of hours worked per week per part timer. 
 
Answer:  See answers posted as of June 14, 2011 for the Concord warehouse.  Please 
contact Law Warehouses directly for information regarding their warehouse staffing 
levels. 
 
 
Question:  What are your required destruction procedures? 
 
Answer:  See answers posted as of June 14, 2011. 
 
 
Question:  Is it possible to get a tour of the private warehouse in Nashua, NH? 
 
Answer:  See answers posted as of June 14, 2011. 
 
 
 
NOTE: 
 
In the Warehouse RFP, Appendix H, Pages 76-77, historical shipments were corrected in 
a previous Clarifications & Amendment document.  This information provided totals and 
averages.  We want to further point out that shipping can range from 9,000 cases to 
40,000 cases per day depending on the time of year.   
 
 


